
Bi-State Coordination Committee 
March 19, 2015 
9:30 – 11:00 AM 

Metro Regional Center 
600 NE Grand Avenue, Portland 

Metro Council Chambers 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Welcome and Introductions – Chair Hughes 

2.  Review of Minutes for December 9, 2014 Meeting – Chair Hughes  

3.  I-205 Access and Operations Study – Bob Hart (RTC) 

•  Recommendations 
•  Next Step: “Bus-on-Shoulders” Study Scoping 

4.  2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study – 
Retrospective Review – Mark Harrington (RTC) 

5.  Columbia River Bridges – Issues/News/Updates – Agency Staffs 

6.  Bi-State Breakfast Series – Potential Sponsorship 

7.  Future Meeting Agenda Planning – All 

8.  Adjourn – Chair Hughes 

 

Future Agenda Topics: 

• Oregon/Washington Values and Beliefs Survey Results 
• Evaluation of Regional Transportation Governance Models Across the US 
• Update to the Washington/Oregon Interstate Cooperation Project (2007) 

 

Metro’s nondiscrimination notice: Metro respects civil rights. Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 that bans discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin. For more information on Metro’s civil rights 
program, or to obtain a Title VI complaint form, visit www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536. Metro 
provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and people who need an interpreter at 
public meetings. All Metro meetings are wheelchair accessible. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication aid 
or language assistance, call 503-797-1536 or TDD/TTY 503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 7 business days in advance 
of the meeting to accommodate your request. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet’s website at 
www.trimet.org. 

Bi-State  
Coordination  

Committee  
 

The Bi-State Coordination 
Committee is chartered by 

member agencies to review, 
discuss, and make 

recommendations about 
transportation, land use, and 

related issues of bi-state 
significance. 

 
Clark County 
 

Metro 
 

Multnomah County 
 

City of Vancouver 
 

City of Portland 
 

City of Battle Ground 
 

City of Gresham 
 

C-TRAN 
 

TriMet 
 

Port of Vancouver 
 

Port of Portland 
 

WSDOT 
 

ODOT 
 

 
1300 Franklin Street Floor 4 

PO Box 1366 
Vancouver, Washington 

98666-1366 

Tel 360-397-6067 
Fax 360-397-6132 

www.rtc.wa.gov 

 

 

METRO 
600 NE Grand Avenue 

Portland, Oregon 
97232-2736 

Tel 503-797-1700 
Fax 503-797-1797 
TDD 503-797-1804 

www.oregonmetro.gov 



Bi-State Coordination Committee 
Meeting Minutes 

December 9, 2014 
 
1. Welcome and Introductions 

The meeting of the Bi-State Coordination Committee was called to order by Chair Jack Burkman at 
8:35 a.m. at the Vancouver Community Library, 901 C Street, Vancouver, WA 98660.  He asked 
each member to introduce them self and note which jurisdiction or organization they represented.  
Those in attendance follow. 

Committee Members 
Katy Brooks, Port of Vancouver Alternate 
Jack Burkman, City of Vancouver Councilmember, Chair 
Jeff Hamm, C-TRAN Executive Director/CEO 
Tom Hughes, Metro President, Chair 
Susie Lahsene, Port of Portland Alternate 
Alan Lehto, TriMet Alternate 
Jeanne Stewart, Clark County Commissioner 
Don Wagner, WSDOT SW Region Administrator 
Rian Windsheimer, ODOT Region One Manager 
 
Staff and Interested Guests 
Kelly Brooks, ODOT 
Andy Cotugno, Metro 
Bart Gernhart, WSDOT 
Bob Hart, Regional Transportation Council 
David Hodges, U.S. Senator Patty Murray’s Office 
Carolyn Long, Washington State University Vancouver 
Sheila Martin, Portland State University  
Matt Ransom, Regional Transportation Council 
Karen Schilling, Multnomah County 
Patrick Sweeney, City of Vancouver 
Sandra Towne, City of Vancouver 
Steve Tubbs, Citizen 
Walter Valenta, Citizen 
Shann Weishaar, Regional Transportation Council 
Diane Workman, Regional Transportation Council 

Chair Burkman welcomed everyone to the Vancouver Library which opened in 2011.  He 
encouraged all to walk through the facility after the meeting.  He noted that the third floor is the 
youth floor, and it has the largest early learning center of any library in the United States.  The 
library system covers about 4,500 square miles from Woodland to Goldendale, with 13 branches.  
The Columbia Room that they are using is available for community use, and it has a CVTV control 
room so they can broadcast and record.  

2. Review of Minutes for July 10, 2014 Meeting 
JEFF HAMM MOVED FOR APPROVAL OF THE JULY 10, 2014 MEETING MINUTES.  THE 
MOTION WAS SECONDED BY SUSIE LAHSENE AND APPROVED.  JEANNE STEWART 
ABSTAINED. 

3. SW Washington Values & Beliefs (500K Voices) Survey Results 
Chair Burkman invited Carolyn Long and Sheila Martin to present results from a survey that was 
taken over the last several months.  It is similar to one that has occurred in Oregon.  This is the first 
time they have had the opportunity to get this kind of information.  Chair Burkman said this has not 
yet been rolled out robustly to the community.  This is early information.   



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 
 
 

Carolyn Long provided a handout with some of the presentation slides.  She said it will be released 
publically, and it is available on the Web currently at www.500kvoices.org as noted on the last page 
of the handout.  She said this is the start of a larger project that WSU Vancouver is going to be 
involved with a couple of other partners.  She said there was an article in the Columbian about it, as 
well as a news report on OPB a couple of weeks ago.   

Ms. Long said for a number of years DHM Research has been conducting a survey of the beliefs 
and values of Portland, NW Oregon, and Oregon and they have been able to do it over time so they 
are able to measure how community values and beliefs have changed.  This is the first time they 
have done it for SW Washington.  In order to construct the survey, they selected a small number of 
questions that appeared on the Oregon survey and they duplicated it.  They only used a small 
number because of cost.  They hope to get money in the future to maybe make a larger survey and 
draw more comparison between the two communities.  This is the first one. The questions were 
identical to those that were in the Oregon survey with one addition, which is whether or not people 
commute to Portland to work.   

Ms. Long said WSU Vancouver has been working closely with Portland State University.  She 
worked with Sheila Martin on a Bi-State Report a couple years ago, and they anticipate doing some 
work with this data.  This is the collective voice of a region.  She said this is the first time they have 
done this survey.  They are trying to find out what people feel about a variety of issues in SW 
Washington.  She said they are very excited about it.  More than 2,000 residents were contacted.  
There were two stages to the research.  The first stage was this scientific study that was conducted 
by phone and also online.  The second stage of work done by DHM was when they made the 
website open for comment from individuals in the community.  That information was not statistically 
relevant, so they do not refer to that in the data analysis.  However, they did get a lot of responses 
from open ended questions about how people feel about these issues, and that will be a nice 
source of finding out about people’s thoughts.   

Ms. Long provided a slide of what was referred to in the Columbian article.  It talked about how 
people feel about living in this community.  She said the friendliness and neighborliness of 
individuals ranked the most high followed by public safety, to beauty/scenery, and small community.  
This will be addressed more thoroughly when Sheila Martin talks about the comparison between the 
northwest Oregon region.   

When asked which issue is most important for government to tackle, 12% chose economy/jobs 
(which they see that reflected both regionally and nationally), followed closely by road infrastructure 
at 10%.  That shows the community’s need or interest in addressing as a policy issue.  Next is 
government spending/taxation at 8%.  Ms. Long said one of the things that they will see later on in 
the comparison was one of the differences between northwest Oregon and southwest Washington 
was how people feel about taxes.   

Attitudes vary on growth and public transportation.  While almost half support elevating southwest 
Washington’s economic role in the state and across the nation, 38% expressed concern about too 
much development increasing their pace of life.  Almost half of those surveyed say they favor 
investing more tax revenue in public transit over spending more on roads for cars, and 45% believe 
shifting tax dollars from road and highway construction to public transportation is desirable.   

Respondents strongly believe that higher education should be made more affordable.  They favor 
building and communicating a pro-business attitude in local and state government.  More than half 
of respondents say protecting our region’s green spaces is desirable, and that they would choose 
policies to help preserve environmental quality over economic growth.  When it comes to their 
careers, residents say they are more inspired by doing good things and working with good people 
than by having others admire their accomplishments or climbing the corporate ladder.  The survey 
found 68% of respondents would like to see insurers discourage unhealthy behaviors and create 
incentives to encourage healthy choices, in order to help control insurance costs.  Most southwest 

http://www.500kvoices.org/


Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 
 
 

Washington residents believe the issue of climate change will require changes in our way of life, 
versus 40% who say they would rather deal with the problem of climate change later.   

Ms. Long said this is their first attempt of evaluating people’s beliefs and values; however, they are 
very much in favor of looking at the data in a lot more detail.  She said there are a quite a few 
questions that are asked.  They looked at Clark, Cowlitz, and Skamania Counties.  There is an 
opportunity to look at these results and divide them by county and by age group in order to find out 
what the differences are among the various populations, which is what they will do in the next steps.   

At WSU Vancouver, they will be convening a series of community conversations about some of 
these results.  They have not announced it yet; they will announce it in January.  They would like to, 
instead of just looking at the statistical data, actually listen to what the community feels about these 
issues by having large conversations broken up in small groups where they gather additional data 
to find out how people feel about these issues.  Ms. Long said they are looking forward to that next 
step.   

4. Comparative Review of OR and SW WA Values 
Sheila Martin said as Carolyn had mentioned, one of the things that they wanted to do with the 
survey results was to be able to compare the Values and Beliefs between the Oregon side of the 
metropolitan region (northwest Oregon) and southwest Washington.  She said since this committee 
was reconvened and over the summer, they have been spending time thinking and talking about 
what the basis are for promoting stronger collaboration between our two states.  She said the 
results of the survey will allow them to test their assertions or assumptions about the shared values 
that we may or may not have.  Ms. Martin said she would provide a few highlights that they think 
are most relevant to the Bi-State coordination Committee.  She said to keep in mind a couple of 
things for northwest Oregon, which includes Washington, Multnomah, and Clackamas Counties.  
When comparing, she said the margin of error around the survey is about 3.8%.   

Ms. Martin began with the Washington survey question of “What do you value most about living in 
your community?”  The Oregon survey question was “What do you value about lining in Oregon?”  
Results showed that people in northwest Oregon also value friendliness and neighborliness.  They 
are not so concerned about safety or public safety.  There was a stronger value for nature in 
general, beauty and scenery, and being close to the mountains and ocean from Oregonians, but not 
as much for southwest Washington folks.  The weather and climate was more appreciated by 
Oregonians.  The comments on “proximity to bigger cities” were interesting.  Ms. Martin said 
statements were either “they like being next to Portland” or “they are glad they are not in Portland”.  
Those two comments often went together.  Being in a quiet peaceful community were things that 
came up among the Washingtonians but not the Oregonians. 

The next question addressed asked “when you think about your community ten years from now, do 
you think it will be a better place to live, about the same as it is today, or worse than today?”  Given 
the margin of error, it was hard to draw a conclusion, but generally, it looks like Oregonians think it 
is more likely to be a better place, but it does show that Oregonians think it will change, more so 
than Washingtonians.   

The question on priorities was “What is the most important issue that you want your local 
government officials to do something about?”  Both were equally concerned with the economy and 
jobs and believed that the public sector should take a role in that.  Oregonians were much more 
concerned about government spending and taxation.   

Jeff Hamm asked if the presumption that the interest in government spending and taxation is to 
reduce spending and reduce taxation.  Ms. Martin said there is a question about that later on.  She 
said she thinks it is about wanting more spending in Oregon but not in Washington.  She would add 
to this later in the presentation.   



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 
 
 

Jack Burkman said he was surprised about the higher level of “don’t know” answers in Washington.  
Carolyn Long said she thought that since this was the first time this survey was conducted, it may 
have something to do with that.  Sheila Martin said it also may be that people don’t know just what it 
is that local government has the power to influence.  Jack Burkman said for the government 
spending and taxation both in northwest Oregon and southwest Washington, he asked if there was 
a large variation among the Counties?  They have not looked into that at this point.  Carolyn Long 
said local government can mean different levels of local government, so that might have an 
influence as well.   

Rian Windsheimer said it is sometimes difficult to tell when you have two studies like this.  He 
referred to the two items of road infrastructure and traffic/traffic congestion where Oregonians 
answered to the road infrastructure but nothing to the traffic/traffic congestion.  Ms. Martin noted 
that the Oregon Values and Beliefs survey was conducted in 2013, so there is a lag with respect to 
when the Washingtonians responded to the survey.  Things that are in the public consciousness 
change, so the responses can change as well.   

Ms. Martin said a question of priorities of environment or economy was asked.  Responders were 
asked to evaluate two statements:  Statement A was “Economic growth should be given priority 
even if the environment suffers to some extent”; Statement B was “Protection of the environment 
should be given more priority even at the risk of slowing economic growth”.  The results showed in 
both cases (statements) stronger concern for the environment, more likely to say they think we 
should protect the environment even if it means we might sacrifice some economic growth and not 
a big difference between SW Washington and NW Oregon.   

Don Wagner asked when the survey was taken.  Ms. Martin said for SW Washington it was the 
summer of 2014, and in Oregon it was in 2013.   

For the priority of roads or transit, the two statements were: Statement A “We should invest more in 
roads for cars” and Statement B “We should invest more in public transit.”  There was not a strong 
conclusion, but in both cases Statement B was preferred.  This was a bit of a surprise to members. 

Regarding public services and taxes, there were three statements and respondents were asked 
which comes closest to how they felt.  The three statements were 1) We spend too much on public 
services and taxes should be reduced. 2) We spend about the right amount on public services and 
taxes should remain the same. 3) We don’t spend enough on public services and we should 
increase some taxes.  The strongest result was that Oregonians feel more strongly that we should 
increase some taxes and that we should be spending more public money on some things.  The 
other statements were within the margin of error.   

The statement “Shift some funding for road and highway construction toward public transportation 
such as better bus service and high speed rail projects.  There was not a lot of statistical difference 
between Washingtonians and Oregonians with respect to where they lean, but 45% in SW 
Washington and 46% in NW Oregon saying we should shift some funding.  It was noted that this 
percent would not be enough to support a ballot measure.   

Economic development actions were also addressed. Two statements were given: 1) Build and 
communicate a pro-business attitude in local and state government, and 2) build and communicate 
a pro-environment attitude in local and state government.  There was not a big difference.  Katy 
Brooks said she has seen some surveys in the State of Washington Association of Businesses on 
quantifying measurable results that correlate to the permits.  In other words, if you support the 
environment to what degree do you want to see measurable results of regulation to actual results 
the permit required.  She said it would be interesting to dig into to this to understand, because she 
said she thought that people in this area want it all, clean environment to live in and attract new 
businesses.  Ms. Brooks said it would be interesting to see to what degree they would go either 
way.  Ms. Martin asked if she meant what you are getting for the environmental regulation.  Ms. 
Brooks said in part, and there are checks and balances.  She said that sliding scale is relevant to 
policy makers and regulatory laws.   



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 
 
 

Sheila Martin said more of these results will be rolled out and presented over the next few months.  
She said they will be digging into the data further, and said it is interesting for them to hear what 
members response to this is.   

Katy Brooks said in the northwest Oregon survey, it would be interesting to look at the downtown 
Portland residents as opposed to the outlying areas to see how that compares to the southwest 
Washington community as a satellite around the downtown core to see if there were similarities, 
such as urban versus suburban versus satellite service.   

Jack Burkman said there is a theory that there is some commonality between results that you would 
get out of Clackamas County and Clark County.  He said whether or not it is true, he did not now.  It 
would be interesting to know.   

Jack Burkman asked when they planned to do the next step into comparison.  He asked if they 
would have that information by the next meeting in March.  It was felt they would have that 
information by then.  Mr. Burkman said that could be something for the March meeting. 

Carolyn Long said they know what they would like to look at in terms of dividing up the data, but if 
members have suggestions about what they would like to see, it would be helpful to them.  They 
want to provide data that will be useful for members planning.  She said to e-mail her or Sheila, and 
they would take that into consideration.   

Tom Hughes said there have been several editions of the survey done in Oregon.  He said it would 
be interesting to see that data compiled to show some trends.   

Jack Burkman said SW Washington is pretty diverse.  He asked if there was an urban – rural split in 
Clark County.  That was discussed in the context of Oregon versus Washington in comparison, but 
not within Clark County.  Carolyn Long said they do have that information.  She said there are some 
interesting findings with the demographic data as well.  She said SW Washington is changing.   

Jack Burkman asked if there was enough data to pull out ethnicity results.  Ms. Long said that could 
be a bit tricky for both Oregon and Washington, because they are so small and they are likely to 
choose to not answer that question.  They can get age and gender and where they live, such as 
urban core City of Vancouver versus Clark County.  She was not sure they could do that yet and 
that she did not think they received zip codes.   

Alan Lehto anything on the transportation and land use related issues are important to TriMet along 
with economic development.   

Jeff Hamm said in the appendix page of the 2014 survey, looking at the demographics, he said it 
looks like the ethnic group percentages don’t add up.  Carolyn Long said they don’t.  She 
mentioned earlier that at one point they decided to do the second gathering of data with online 
responses because they were low in numbers of races and also age.  They did get responses, but it 
was self-selected so people could have gone multiple times.  Sheila Martin added that noted in the 
table listing the ethnic groups was a footnote.  Hispanic or Latino is an ethnicity that can be 
combined with any race, so some percentages do not equal 100%.  She also noted that the 
Hispanic/Latino folks were much underrepresented in the scientific survey and the public 
engagement survey.   

Tom Hughes asked about the number of respondents.  The scientific survey had 673 respondents 
and the public engagement survey had 1,364 respondents.  He referred to their online opt-in which 
has about 19,000 for the Portland metropolitan area.  He said they occasionally put questions to 
them and what they have done with that is that they have identified people with ethnicity and age.  
They have tested it and generally it tests pretty accurately.   

Jack Burkman asked if they had access to the actual questions.  Ms. Long said she could get those 
to him.  Sheila Martin said they are trying to do a better job at gaging how many people they are 
reaching and how well they are reaching them.  She said they have started doing evaluations for all 
presentations and distributed copies for members to fill out with feedback.   



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 
 
 

Jeanne Stewart asked for a copy of the PowerPoint of the shared values and beliefs presented.  
That would be provided to Commissioner Stewart.   

5. Columbia River Bridges – Issues / News Updates 
Matt Ransom said they understand based on the meeting so far this year that the committee would 
like to see updates as they are appropriate on issues of bi-state significance to help keep the dialog 
going and information sharing.  They understood the task to be project specific, policy specific, and 
oriented toward I-5 and I-205 corridors where there is direct connections but there may be larger 
initiatives that should be addressed.   

The RTC Board unanimously approved the Regional Transportation Plan Update for Clark County 
at their December 2 meeting.  Knowing that Metro adopted their RTP this last summer, Mr. Ransom 
had a few observations about RTC’s RTP update.  He said it was largely policy and programmatic 
focused.  In that they need to upgrade their population forecast to calibrate to a couple policies 
established by FHWA.  The Board emphasis in terms of policy interest was on issues of economic 
development, how to refine their project selection criteria for regional flexible funds to focus more on 
economic development.  He said they will be looking at their project review criteria to see if there 
may be a way to get more points for those purposes.  Another issue is the interest in funding or the 
lack thereof, and how to start to move as a region around pushing for funding and maybe even a 
regional initiative.  

In terms of consistency as an MPO, the federal mandate is that a two state, bi-state MPO region 
have consistency within their Plans.  The Regional Transportation Plan that RTC adopted did 
include as a project, the I-5 Bridge replacement.  That is representative of the component parts of 
the former Columbia River Crossing.  The RTC and Metro’s RTPs are consistent in terms of that 
project, with a lot of policy consistency as well.  The population forecasts are similar.  They include, 
as most RTPs include, a strategic element that is not on the project list, but they are issues of 
strategy or a horizon that they need to continue to develop.  There are three of those that showed 
up in the RTC Plan.  First is to continue to develop our high capacity transit corridors.  In 2008, RTC 
adopted a policy plan that laid out some high capacity transit corridors.  Each of those corridors as 
they go toward project development and implementation will need to be refined further. Strategy 
wise, there was a call to continue to refine those corridors.  C-TRAN is moving forward and 
anticipating a full funding grant agreement for BRT on Fourth Plain.  Mr. Ransom said the next 
question is what is next? - A Highway 99 corridor, or something on I-205 just to continue to seek 
opportunity.  That is one of the strategic elements.   

The second relates to developing a regional long-term population / growth forecast and a travel 
demand forecast.  This is an opportunity area within the two MPOs to look beyond the state 
mandated 20-year horizons that we both operate under.   

The third relates to new corridors.  Mr. Ransom distributed a handout.  He said there seems a lot of 
interest in SW Washington around new corridors, and specifics of maybe crossing the Columbia 
River.  There have been four instances as shown in the handout where the Clark County 
Commission placed on the public ballot sheet in 2013 and 2014 advisory votes.  The caveat is that 
those votes were advisory only to the Clark County Commission in terms of policy.  As shown, it 
asks the broad question of interest of bridges east, west, or other.  The November 4, 2014, 
Advisory Vote where the question was asked should the County Commission support or advocate 
for a new east county bridge crossing the Columbia River.  A slight majority is interested in that 
topic, and nearly half the people are not so interested in that topic.  The RTC has agreed to place 
on a future agenda discussion for the Board this matter, possibly February or March of 2015.  RTC 
staff needs to go back and refresh where they studied the issue back in 2008.  The RTC Board 
developed some ideas about corridors that crisscross Clark County.  The study was the Future 
Corridor Visioning Study.  As part of that, the question was prompted if there was a need long term 
if we have a huge population for an additional river crossing.  Mr. Ransom said the recent ballot 



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 
 
 

measure pivoted off of that Visioning Study concluding that we do need one.  With the RTC Board, 
they intend to go back and refresh and look at that study and the scope and start to narrow in on 
the question of the need short term versus strategy for long term and distinguish between the two.  
They will start to talk about corridors and whether that moves forward to river crossing discussion is 
uncertain.   

Tom Hughes asked for clarification of what a west county bridge location refers to.  Matt Ransom 
said the RTC Visioning Study published in 2008 had some very broad generalizations about a west 
side corridor, which the idea goes back decades.  This could perhaps be a major arterial or a limited 
access roadway from Ridgefield down the west side adjacent to the Columbia River down into the 
Port of Vancouver lowland area.  Whether it crossed the river the study said what if you crossed 
here.  The study conclusion suggested that it would not draw a lot of traffic, and it would be 
extremely expensive if not prohibited to build.  Mr. Ransom said it is a broad look and a proposal to 
look at crossing the river at more locations.   

Tom Hughes referred to the advisory vote and said a toll free bridge was a pretty good deal.  Jack 
Burkman said all four of the advisory votes had that in common.  They are all toll free.  The west 
side was communicated as west of the current I-5 bridge, nothing more specific.  The east county 
bridge became more specific at 192nd Avenue.  Mr. Burkman said now that they have this advisory 
vote on the east side, it seems to push off the previous years with a new look.  That one passed by 
just under 6%.  The results for the toll free I-5 bridge, the results showed it passed with about 
11.5%.  The west side location was at .06%.  The Transportation Corridors Visioning that was done 
in 2008 was wrapped around what happens when Clark County reached 1 million people.  The 
results said we don’t have sufficient transportation infrastructure to drain out of the expansion areas 
to the north and the north east.  There needs to be some kind of corridor set up through there.  That 
invites the question of how to cross the river on the east side of Clark County.  The other part was 
from a land use perspective at the time, it was built out up to the 800 ft. level with people.  That was 
where the study discussion stopped.  Currently, RTC is in a position of getting everyone back to a 
common level of knowledge of what that visioning was and was not and what the next steps would 
be.  Mr. Burkman said they would start working on this in 2015.   

Rian Windsheimer said he had a hard time taking anything from this.  He said for the many years 
he has attended the TMAC meetings he has heard that they want more bridges, more roads, and 
more transit, but when asked to put in 5 cents to get all of them, the answer is no.  The Values and 
Beliefs survey is similar.  There are a lot more unknowns than knowns in this conversation.  He said 
he questioned that the surveys show us the answers.   

Tom Hughes said it is very difficult to advocate in favor of a concept of a project through a vote of 
the people, because sooner or later somebody has to put some real specific things on the table 
about what they thought the public had in mind when they were doing it, and they are usually 
wrong.  Mr. Hughes said particularly if you only have a 5 or 6 percent margin of error in the advisory 
votes, you’re never going to get support for the finished product.   

Jack Burkman said in many circles, there is good recognition that there is a lot of confusion created 
by these advisories starting with “no toll”.  The question then is what the funding mechanism is and 
what does that mean?  Mr. Burkman said he hoped this new survey would be beneficial along with 
the follow-up conversations with the residents so they can start broaching this topic a bit.  He said 
he did not know how to restart transportation investments.  He said if anything, his biggest concern 
is that these advisory votes might have set in place a perception that there are ways of getting 
major transportation projects without paying for them.  That is a tough starting point.   

A question was asked of the November 2014 advisory vote regarding what was meant by “a 
community embraced projects policy.”  Mr. Burkman said that is from a series of statements by the 
Board of County Commissioners.   

Katy Brooks said this goes back to Tom Hughes point, when you do public surveys like this, you 
can’t expect folks to deeply understand what it all means.  She said that is the challenge of being 



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 8 
 
 

someone who is supposed to advocate for what folks want and make it happen.  It is working on the 
principles that aren’t necessarily doable in the real world.  Ms. Brooks said it goes back to the 
education piece.  Part of it could be the educational piece we as a group or we as a region over the 
color of money, the types of money that is actually available and the feasibility of funding any 
bridge.  She said maybe this is a piece of the educational process that needs to be front and center, 
not only where we put a new bridge, what type of a bridge, and what types of modes of traffic that 
move across the bridge.  It is understanding how anybody gets anything paid for in today’s world.   

Rian Windsheimer said the point about modes is interesting when you consider if someone 
supports a bridge, but for light rail some are maybe or a very strong yes.  Portland just built a bridge 
that is transit and bike/pedestrian only, so there is a wide range.   

Jack Burkman said in Clark County in looking at the results, it may surprise you. The voters were 
not asked if they approved light rail, they were asked if they wanted to vote on it.  The downtown 
Vancouver core area group said they did not even want to vote on it.  When you look at the rural 
areas, real high percentages want a vote.  He said those are not surprises.  He said his biggest 
concern in this finance part is how to have a conversation with people around the concept of one 
generation builds a bridge for the next.  It is the future investment as to the immediate pay.  He said 
he is fearful that people have adopted a philosophy that we see in our school system, sometimes 
referred to as fail first, fund second.  When there are so many portables, when kids can’t attend and 
they are bused to another school, the level of pain causes people to finally agree to pay the bill and 
you get a new one.  That is the cycle.  He said he hoped that is not true with large infrastructure.   

Jeff Hamm said there is a lot of heat and smoke on this side of the river about a new bridge 
crossing or the I-5.  He said what they don’t have is a sense of where Metro is and the Oregon 
elected officials.  He said his sense is that they have shifted to other priorities, and this really 
doesn’t stack up to put any investment into.  He said it would be good on the north side of the river 
to get a sense of where Oregon is on it.  He said unfortunately, the Clark County representative had 
to leave early.  Chair Burkman said it is important for the County to hear this conversation and 
participate.  They are an important player.   

Tom Hughes said it is fair to say that in the RTP that Metro just passed, the bridge continues to hold 
a prominent place.  It is their intension on the south side of the metro area that the bridge is a key 
feature to their future transportation.  He said the reality of it is that they won’t get money for it.  In 
the interim, they are going to fund the projects that they can fund and continue to keep that top on 
their priority list.  He said there is frustration on the majority party on the south of the river that they 
couldn’t get any of the Republicans to cross over and vote to support a one-state only funding of the 
bridge.  There is general frustration down there that they couldn’t get the Washington Legislature to 
fund anything at all.  Mr. Hughes said there is some comparison between Washington State and 
Clackamas County who refused to fund the bridge that everybody was going across in the case of 
the Selwood Bridge.  He said it is realistic to understand that we have got to replace the bridge, and 
it is realistic to understand that there is no money available to do that right now.  He said they are 
not going to put everything else on hold while they get the money to do it.   

Jeff Hamm asked if their priority is still to replace the bridge and a third crossing would not supplant 
that.  Tom Hughes said a third crossing would have to go all the way back and start our process all 
over again.   

Jack Burkman said in the update that Mr. Hughes just gave, 90% of that is the same on the 
Washington side of the river.  Mr. Burkman said their RTP does not contain “CRC”.  The description 
of the project does not say CRC, because it is not, but the actual purpose listed in there is the same 
and has not changed.  When talking about how to fund, they are still along that path.  He said they 
know where Washington is in respect to funding.  Mr. Burkman asked what was happening on the 
legislative side of this. 

Andy Cotugno said he thought he heard the Governor say “we tried; it’s in your court.”  Mr. Cotugno 
said he thought he said we are not doing anything on the CRC funding; it is your move next, 



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 9 
 
 

meaning the Washington Legislature.  Mr. Cotugno said as far as the Oregon Legislature goes, they 
haven’t done anything yet, but there has been a major initiative among an organization called the 
Oregon Transportation Forum to develop a comprehensive funding package.  They have done that; 
they have voted on it, and it is going to be introduced to the 2015 Legislature.  It is up to the 
Legislature to decide what to do with it.  It has road funds, Cascade Amtrak funds, lottery funds for 
non-roads purposes, and more.  In the last Legislature they approved $450 million for CRC, but 
they didn’t approve a funding source to pay for the debt service on the $450 million.  If it had gone 
according to plan, Mr. Cotugno said he thought the package that would be in front of us today would 
have included a penny and a half gas tax increase for debt retirement on CRC and then something 
for the rest of the system.  Funding for CRC isn’t even in the discussion.  It is everything else for the 
rest of the system statewide, transit, freight, and roads; nothing mentioned about the debt service 
on the CRC project in the package that has been adopted by the Oregon Transportation Forum to 
go to the Legislature.   

Susie Lahsene asked Rian Windsheimer if he could give them a sense of what kind of maintenance 
issues are related to the I-5 Bridge.   

Mr. Windsheimer distributed a letter that he prepared for the RTC Board of Directors which provided 
I-5 Interstate Bridges Maintenance and Rehabilitation Needs.  It included some background and the 
basic needs of each bridge.  This was at the request of some of the RTC members.  Since that 
time, they have also produced a Seismic Plus Report.  He read the language regarding the I-5 
Bridge replacement.  The Interstate Bridge I-5 connects Portland to Vancouver.  To identify the 
significance of seismic vulnerability, it would collapse or be rendered unusable in an earthquake.  
Oregon and Washington have developed a project to replace the bridges with a seismically resilient 
structure and address other transportation deficiencies, but the project has not moved forward.  
Replacement of the Interstate Bridges is not included in their Seismic Plus Report with a cost of 
addressing that it is too high.  ODOT assumes that the bridges deficiencies will be addressed 
through a specific project around that Columbia River Crossing project.  The handout lists the cost 
of regular maintenance.   

Don Wagner said to keep in mind that WSDOT pays 50% of the maintenance costs.  It is a 50/50 
share in the costs.   

It was asked if the Seismic Report speaks to I-205.  If I-5 fails, is I-205 standing?  Mr. Windsheimer 
said it does talk a little about that.  He said the I-205 bridge would do much better; it has a higher 
seismic standard.   

Jeff Hamm said he sees RTC marching off this next year to dive into the corridors visioning and 
start talking about a third bridge crossing.  He said he felt there would be pressure to do that, and 
he was asking if Oregon would be participating in that. 

Jack Burkman said he had a different perspective on that.  He said he thought there would be 
pressure to look at that, but with the Corridors Visioning he thought they would talk about what is 
needed to address cross river transportation over time.  He said what they arrived at last time this 
was done was that it did not pull the priority off of I-5.  It said that is a critical need, and as time 
marches on there is greater need elsewhere.  Mr. Burkman said he would be surprised to see the 
outcome to be another crossing in lieu of.  Mr. Hamm said what he sees to help bring that 
eventuality about is some empirical data that says that these third crossings are not going to solve 
the I-5 Bridge issues.  Chair Burkman said that is exactly what they got into with the Corridor 
Visioning.  He said the west side corridor would only off load I-5 by about 8% of the load, and 
something very similar on the east side.  It was not addressing a core problem, unless some other 
needs came up.  Mr. Burkman said they plan to start by getting everyone on the same page with 
what was said and not said in the original study.  He said there is also belief that the original study 
called for a crossing at 192nd, which it did not.   

Tom Hughes said the only issue on the Oregon side of the river, which might prove complicating, is 
that there is a group of local jurisdictions on the west side of Portland that have resurrected the 



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 10 
 
 

west side bi-pass idea.  He said if the two ever get connected, there may be some synergy there.  
Although, he said the advocate for that program in the Oregon Legislature was just defeated in the 
last elections.   

Jack Burkman said there is a small group on the Washington side that is advocating a west side 
crossing.  He said they have struggled at describing how to get traffic off of I-5 to that, because they 
proposed an overpass flyover over Vancouver, but there is the wildlife refuge to deal with as well.   

Chair Burkman asked Don Wagner to discuss the Governor’s budget.   

Don Wagner said he would go back to the Columbia River Bridge project and give the status.  He 
said it is Washington’s view that there is a ready to go project there in search of funding.  The 
needs that we addressed in the original Columbia River Crossing project still exist.  The bridges are 
not getting any newer, not any more stable, and traffic congestion is getting worse.  To address the 
problems that exist that we are trying to solve with the Columbia River Crossing, they believe they 
need to address the bridges themselves.  They are in a position that says it is a project that is ready 
to go into the next phase in search of funding.  That being said, he said he does not know what the 
Governor’s Transportation Budget is going to be.  That will be made public within the next 30 days.  
There may be a funding package, or there may not.  It is not known at this point.  Mr. Wagner said 
they are sticking pretty strongly to the use of the project. 

Andy Cotugno asked how long he could make that statement relative to bridge permits and record 
of decisions.  He said they have a permitted project on the shelf today, and asked when those sorts 
of things expire.   

Don Wagner said there are many, many permits.  He said there are a lot of these really big 
complicated projects out there and people understand that you have to be able to not start over on 
everything simply because of the time period on a permit.  He said almost every permit will need to 
be refreshed that they have in line between both states as they move forward.  Mr. Wagner said to 
keep in mind the work that they did in the past, the $180 million are things that are not going to 
change such as the Troutdale formation underneath the Columbia River that has been there for a 
few million years.  Mr. Wagner said they have a lot of data that is still very, very valid.  As long as 
we’re talking about replacing the bridges, he thinks that we will not be starting over again, but they 
may have to refresh almost every permit. 

Chair Burkman asked Mr. Wagner about the financial issues before our Legislature this year.  Mr. 
Wagner said there are several major issues that the Legislature will have to address.  There is an 
educational issue decision where they are under orders to improve our education system and state 
support for that.  That will be a huge conversation in the General Fund.  On the transportation side, 
there is also a court decision a few years ago related to Puget Sound specifically and barriers to 
salmon migration.  The courts ordered the state to speed up their repairs and replacement of 
barriers with a specific deadline to have it fixed.  They have just this year looked at the progress, 
and said that somebody is in contempt of court for not moving fast enough.  They left that open to 
whether that somebody was WSDOT that doesn’t fund projects, the Legislature that does, or the 
Governor.  It is open, they are watching, but they made it clear that they expect to see some 
progress towards funding out of this coming Legislature or they may come back and do something 
that the Supreme Court in the state has never done before, which is to find an elected official in 
contempt of court for not taking them seriously.   

Chair Burkman asked what was meant by barriers.  Mr. Wagner said it is basically culverts.  It did 
not relate to anything outside the Puget Sound, because it was brought to DOT by the tribes that 
have treaty rights in the Puget Sound.  Mr. Wagner said in the SW Region, there are a few of the 
barriers in the north.  He said this may gain some ground with the Columbia River treaty tribes, and 
they will see something move forward.  Mr. Wagner said it’s a few billion dollars of transportation 
funding.  This is a big hit in transportation.  Mr. Wagner said there is also the aging infrastructure.  
He said we have the distinction of being the last state with a major Interstate bridge collapsing into 
a river.  Luckily it was not the one here in Vancouver, but it did point out that there are a lot of 



Bi-State Coordination Committee  
December 9, 2014, Meeting Minutes 

Page 11 
 
 

bridges that may not be in a position of seismic vulnerability, but are fracture critical as was seen.  
Mr. Wagner said there is a good possibility that transportation improvements will be on the 
Legislatures agenda.  What is in that is not clear.   

Jack Burkman said relative to the education issue facing the Legislature is acting on two parts.  
There is a classroom size initiative, but it did not have any funding associated with it.   

6. Bi-State Coordination Committee – Chartering a Year 2015 Work Program 
Chair Burkman referred to the handout with Agenda topic ideas.  He asked that members take a 
look at that and send Chair Hughes or him any thoughts or ideas.  He proposed the next meeting 
be in March.  He said they could begin with a follow up from the Survey that was presented and 
spend some time in the comparison of both the urban and rural areas in Southwest Washington and 
the portion of Oregon that was surveyed.  By then they should have some information of what is 
going on with the Legislature.  Mr. Burkman said there may possibly be some update with the 
Corridor Visioning.  He also said he would like to see something to address the I-5 corridor.   

Susie Lahsene said the Port of Portland has just completed the update to the cost of congestion.  
She said this might be a good study for Clark County to think about as a foundation piece for 
looking at improvements to certain corridors, including I-5.  She had copies of an Executive 
Summary and a PowerPoint presentation that she distributed and said they could go through it in 
March.  Ms. Lahsene said as you are looking at things for the Washington side of the river to 
undertake, matching this effort might be a good thing.  Chair Burkman said that would be a good 
item for March.  He said from his perspective, the conversation around our transportation system in 
SW Washington moved a long way off the freight issue.  It would be beneficial to move us back to 
that economic and business side.   

Rian Windsheimer said the Seismic Plus Report is also a conversation they are starting to have in 
their Legislature and the Oregon Transportation Commission, around a $5 million program to retrofit 
certain bridges, address landslides, and other issues.  It has the potential to save $84 billion in 
economic recovery by addressing those bridges.  These are issues that both states are looking at.   

Jeff Hamm asked if all members have appointed their representatives for the Bi-State Committee 
and wish to participate.  It was noted that it will take an effort to get more participation.  Chair 
Burkman said the March agenda topics may spark some interest in participation.   

7. Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:00 a.m. 



  Agenda Item 3  
 

  1300 Franklin Street, Floor 4 P.O. Box 1366 Vancouver, Washington 98666-1366 360-397-6067 fax: 360-397-6132 http://www.rtc.wa.gov 
 


 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Bi-State Coordination Committee 
FROM: Bob Hart, Project Manager 
DATE: March 17, 2015 
SUBJECT: I-205 Access and Operations Study Recommendations 

INTRODUCTION 
The I-205 Corridor Study analyzed both short (2022) and long term (2035) performance in the 
corridor and began with the 2011 RTP which contained $540m in capital projects in the I-205 
corridor.  The first phase of the study was initiated with the recognition that, although there was 
high growth forecast for the corridor, there was also more limited funding available for capital 
projects and led to the need to identify a set of optimal or most critical set of highway capital 
projects in the corridor. 

Phase one culminated in a smaller set of core capital projects to address mobility in the corridor.  
The capital cost for the core projects was $138m, reduced from the full $540m list contained in 
the 2011 RTP.  The I-205 core project list, adopted by the Board in November 2012 was 
followed by phase two, known as the Access and Operations Study.   

It investigated approaches to improve the performance and efficiency of the I-205 corridor more 
cost effectively and used the Moving Washington principles established by Washington State 
Department of Transportation (WSDOT) to: operate efficiently, manage demand, and adding 
capacity strategically to address bottlenecks and system gaps.  It also refined the 2035 core 
project list and confirmed their inclusion into the 2014 RTP update.   

ACCESS AND OPERATIONS STUDY RECOMMENDATIONS 
The Access and Operations Study recommendations were adopted by the RTC Board November 
2014 and have three primary components. The roadway recommendations are comprised of the 
2035 core projects which were incorporated into the 2014 RTP update and a set of 2022 short 
term operational projects to be implemented by WSDOT.  The operational policies describe how 
to consider operational improvements in freeway corridors. The transit improvement 
recommendations call for a feasibility study of the technical, policy engineering opportunities 
and constraints of bus on shoulder operations in the I-205 corridor.  A summary of the study 
recommendations are listed below. 

Roadway Improvements 
• Add 2035 Core Projects into the 2014 RTP as capacity improvements for I-205 
• WSDOT lead to implement short term operational improvements 

  



I-205 Access and Operations Study Recommendations 
March 17, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 
 

Operational Policies 
• Policies for regional freeways 
• Analysis factors for considering strategies 
• Implementation policies for ramp metering 

Transit Operations 
• Bus on Shoulder assessment found time savings, reliability, and improved commuter 

ridership potential 
• Recommend feasibility study in 2015 to address viability, engineering, costs, and constraints 

Roadway Improvements 
2035 Core projects: The phase one core projects were reviewed in preparation of the 2014 RTP 
and with minor refinements, confirmed for inclusion into the plan update and are made up of the 
following projects: 
• I-205 Widening (SR-500 to Padden) 
• SR-14 Widening (I-205 to 164th Avenue) 
• I-205 auxiliary lanes between Mill Plain Boulevard and SR-500 
• Padden Interchange improvements with 72nd Avenue slip ramp 
• I-205 Park and Ride at 18th Street 
2022 Operational Strategies: The 2022 analysis examined how the addition of low cost 
operational improvements can manage or improve vehicle flow on I-205.  RTC worked closely 
with WSDOT staff and other local agencies to analyze a wide range of operational strategies and 
assumed that the Mill Plain to 18th Street project is in place with no other improvements in the 
corridor.   

The following operational improvements have a benefit to travel performance in the corridor and 
are recommended for further analysis and development. 

• Ramp meter from Mill Plain Boulevard to I-205 northbound 
• Ramp meter from eastbound Padden Parkway to I-205 southbound 
• I-205 mainline modification to two lanes under SR-500 to provide an add lane at SR-500 

southbound on ramp 
• Ramp meter from 18th Street to I-205 southbound 
• Ramp meter from Mill Plain Boulevard to I-205 southbound 

Operational Policies for Freeways 
The operational policies described below provide guidance for how to consider low cost 
improvements for operating freeways more efficiently and optimizing traffic flow.  Provide for 
the management of limited access freeway corridors through the development of operational 
strategies that address recurring congestion, traffic bottlenecks, and incident management. 

• Consider operational strategies in limited access freeway corridors where congestion levels 
are high and where there is potential for improved corridor flow and efficiency and expanded 
person throughput.   



I-205 Access and Operations Study Recommendations 
March 17, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 
 

• Implementation of operational strategies should include incident management, intelligent 
transportation systems, ramp metering, expanded transit services, and other traffic 
management tools.   

• Design considerations which complement operational strategies and which promote 
efficiency (such as ramp bypass) should also be considered to enhance person throughput and 
freight efficiency. 

Transit Operations 
As part of the I-205 Corridor Study, RTC consulted with C-TRAN and WSDOT staff to conduct 
a screening assessment of bus on shoulder (BOS) operations in the I-205 corridor.    

C-TRAN’s 20-year plan calls for up to 25 buses during the peak period on the Glenn Jackson 
Bridge by 2035.  In addition, the Clark County HCT System Plan recommendations in the I-205 
corridor included all day and more frequent service along the corridor, freeway flyer stops, and 
bus on shoulder that would operate during times of heavy congestion. 

The screening assessment focused only on one component of the HCT recommendation; whether 
conditions in the corridor would warrant further investigation on the viability and feasibility of 
BOS operations on I-205.  The assessment looked at several factors based on criteria identified 
by the Transit Cooperative Research Program (TCRP Report 151: A Guide for Implementing 
Bus on Shoulder Systems). The criteria for the screening assessment are listed below: 

• Are there at least 4 buses per hour? 
• Is mainline speed less than 35 mph? 

• Are entrance and exit ramps less than 1,000 vph? 

• Will inside/outside shoulder support buses? 

• Is inside/outside shoulder at least 10 feet (12 feet desired)? 
The screening assessment for bus on shoulder operation in the I-205 corridor found that it offers 
the opportunity for: improved transit reliability, travel time savings, and expanded commuter 
ridership and should be studied further to determine its viability.  A feasibility study is 
recommended that would: 

• Conduct detailed travel time studies of the I-205 mainline between Mill Plain Boulevard and 
I-84 to determine freeway speeds by segment, time of day, and duration.   

• Evaluate operational issues associated with outside bus on shoulder including the impacts of 
high freeway ramp volumes on feasibility and possible ramp or shoulder modifications. 

• Evaluation should include inside shoulder feasibility and issues associated the ability to 
maneuver transit vehicles to and from the inside median to enter and exit at freeway ramps.  

• Conduct an engineering analysis of physical improvements and shoulder reconstruction 
required for either outside or inside lane BOS operations and order of magnitude cost 
estimate for both options. 

  



I-205 Access and Operations Study Recommendations 
March 17, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 
 

NEXT STEPS 

• Consult with WSDOT on the operational strategy recommendations and develop an approach 
for implementation. 

• Discuss findings of the I-205 bus on shoulder assessment with WSDOT, C-TRAN and 
Oregon partners to gauge the interest in pursuing a feasibility study and a possible study 
proposal. 

 
 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Bi-State Coordination Committee  
Agenda Item 3 

 

 

I-205 Access and Operations Study 

Recommendations 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Study Background 

 $540m in I-205 capital projects in the 2011 

RTP  

 Continued high growth in the corridor and 

limited future funding was the driver for Phase 

One of the Study 

 Phase One adopted a set of core projects with 

$138m of improvements in the I-205 corridor 

 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

 

Wid en to 3 GP la nes a nd a n 
auxilia ry la ne 

Colli /I Rh r 

,...,.rridor Study 

MTP Projects 

Project Areas 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Roadway Improvements

· Add 2035 Core Projects into the 2014 RTP as 

capacity improvements for I-205

· WSDOT lead to implement short term 

operational improvements

Transit Operations 

· Bus on Shoulder assessment found time 

savings, reliability, and improved commuter 

ridership potential

· Recommend feasibility study in 2015 to 

address viability, engineering, costs, and 

constraints

Operational Policies

· Policies for regional freeways

· Analysis factors for considering strategies

· Implementation policies for ramp metering

Study Recommendations  
Summary 
 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

 
HAZEL DELL 

• II 
Widen to 3 lanes each 

direction from SR-500to 
Padden Parkway 

C ,lllIn ;0 It 

j 

1-205 rridor Study 
Adopted 2035 Core Projects 

for the RTP 

Padden I 

~...,-.-.' 
. ~ ••• - ~D 
III- ! 

-_. 
Add auxiliary lane in each 

direction from Mill Plain to 
SR-500 

1-205 Park and Ride 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

 

1-205 rridor Study 

Adopted 2022 
Operational Projects 

Project Areas 

Ramp meter at Mill Plain 
to 1-205 south t"'''''''''-l~~ 

Columhia RiI'l'r 

j 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Operational Policies for 

Freeways 
 Manage limited access freeways using operational 

strategies to address recurring congestion, 

bottlenecks, and incidents 

 Consider corridors with high congestion and 

potential for improved flow, efficiency, and 

throughput 

 Include incident management, ITS, ramp 

metering, expanded transit, and other tools 

 Design should consider ways to enhance person 

throughput and freight efficiency 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Transit BOS Assessment 

Bus on Shoulder Screening Factors Comments 

Are there at least 4 buses per hour? 
16 to 25 peak period 

buses by 2035 

Is mainline speed less than 35 mph? 
Several segments are 

less than 35 mph 

Are entrance and exit ramps less than 1,000 vph? 
Some ramps are over 

1,000 vehicles per hour 

Will inside/outside shoulder support buses? 

Majority of shoulders in 

Washington would need 

to be reconstructed 

Is inside/outside shoulder at least 10 feet (12 feet desired)? 
Some shoulders would 

need to be modified 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

BOS Feasibility 

Recommendation 

 Conduct detailed travel time studies to determine 

freeway speeds by segment, time of day, and duration  

 Evaluate operational and feasibility issues associated 

with outside or inside bus on shoulder in the corridor  

 Conduct an engineering analysis of physical 

improvements and shoulder reconstruction required 

for either outside or inside lane BOS operations and 

order of magnitude cost estimate for both options 

 



www.rtc.wa.gov 

Bi-State Committee Discussion  

 

 

 

 

 Alignment between RTC and Metro RTP on a 

regional transit strategy for I-205 

 Who should participate? 

 What are the key issues? 

 What’s next? 

 

I-205 Access and Operations Report available at: 

http://www.rtc.wa.gov 

 

 



  Agenda Item 4 
 

 
 

 1300 Franklin Street, Floor 4 P.O. Box 1366 Vancouver, Washington 98666-1366 360-397-6067 fax: 360-397-6132 http://www.rtc.wa.gov 
 


MEMORANDUM 

TO: Bi-State Coordination Committee 
FROM: Mark Harrington, Transportation Planner 

DATE: March 17, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study – 
Retrospective Review 

INTRODCUTION 
RTC’s Transportation Corridor Visioning Study was conducted between 2006 and 2008 in an 
effort to identify and assess the potential longer-term need for new regional transportation 
corridors in Clark County to connect growing urban centers.  The Study also had a secondary 
purpose in addressing whether any of these new potential corridors had possibilities for 
extension across the Columbia River.  As various interests are advocating a wide range of 
options for adding bi-state travel capacity, it is timely to review this high-level study that 
considered the possibility of additional cross-river corridors within the region.  

BACKGROUND 

The Study began with a suggestion made by Battle Ground Mayor John Idsinga who asked that 
the future need for a corridor between the two rapidly-growing communities of Battle Ground 
and Camas be explored.  In March 2006, Arch Miller, Port of Vancouver Commissioner and 
RTC Board member, articulated a challenge to the Board to look beyond the 2030 horizon of the 
Regional Transportation Plan adopted in December 2005 to research potential new intra-Clark 
County corridors.  Furthermore, he asked whether any of the identified new corridors could 
potentially be extended across the Columbia River to result in options for a possible new 
Columbia crossing in addition to the existing I-205 and re-constructed I-5 crossings.  Using the 
Padden Parkway as an example, both elected officials recognized that any new corridor takes 
well over twenty years to develop, fund and construct.  Vision planning for new corridors goes 
beyond the traditional focus of the 20-year planning process required of State Comprehensive 
Growth Management Plans and federal and state-required, fiscally-constrained, Regional 
Transportation Plans.   

WHAT WAS THE PURPOSE OF THE STUDY? 
The purpose of the Study, and its primary focus, was to answer the question “How will we get 
around within our own community in the longer-term future if Clark County reaches one million 
in population?”  The study process was also viewed as an opportunity as a forum for discussion 
of future options for crossing the Columbia River.   

The Study was viewed as only a first step in an integrated land use and transportation planning 
process.  It was regarded as a first phase of a multi-phase effort to establish a long term 
transportation/land use vision for the county and provided an initial “50,000-foot level” planning 
look at one possible long-range future.  New candidate transportation corridors were identified as 



2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study – Retrospective Review 
March 17, 2015 
Page 2 

 
 

broad swaths because it was recognized that arterial alignments would take additional steps to 
identify.  In addition, any future vision would need full opportunity for public scrutiny and 
acceptance as well as an analysis of wide range of alternatives.  The RTC Board was asked to 
endorse, rather than “adopt”, the published Study Report acknowledging that it was merely a first 
step in vision planning for the region that had asked single “What if …” question. 

WHAT LAND USE ASSUMPTIONS WERE MADE? 
The Study assumed a population of 1 million people in Clark County and 4 million in the whole 
Portland-Vancouver metropolitan area together with half a million jobs in Clark County and 2 
million employment in the entire metropolitan area.  The Study aimed to look a future state of 
households and employment within the region, rather than focus on a forecast for a specific 
future horizon of 40, 50 or 60 years.   

In allocating the population growth, the continuation of existing Growth Management land use 
policies was assumed with continued expansion of the Urban Growth Areas (UGAs) in Clark 
County and an average 10% increase in densities in targeted areas within existing UGAs.  IN the 
scenario, population growth urbanized most areas of Clark County below the 800 foot contour 
level.  Flood plains and conservation areas funded by Real Estate Excise Taxes (REET) were 
avoided.  In Oregon, growth was accommodated through increased densities in urban centers and 
with some moderate Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) expansion, primarily to the east.   

These population and employment forecasts and land use assumptions were not adopted but were 
formulated for the purposes of this Study to take an initial look at possible future transportation 
corridor needs within Clark County.  The assumptions in the Study represent only one 
conceptual scenario for the future of Clark County and the region.   

WHAT WERE THE PRIMARY STUDY FINDINGS? 
The Study focused on where new transportation corridors might be needed to connect places and 
nodes of growth in Clark County. Potential new corridors were screened using criteria that they 
should connect two of more non-contiguous urban centers, provide at least 10,000 daily trips and 
primarily provide for regional trips defined as trips of 8 miles or more in length.  During the 
study process, there was much discussion on whether new corridors should be “regional” or 
“sub-regional” facilities.  By definition, regional corridors carry a high volume of longer distance 
trips (e.g. SR-500 or SR-502) whereas sub-regional facilities would be more like Mill Plain 
Boulevard or NE 78th Street that also provide access to and circulation within a subarea.   

Within Clark County, the analysis revealed that under the Study’s conceptual land use scenario, 
there may be demand for a future new north-south corridor on both the west and east sides of the 
County as well as a new east-west corridor in North County.  It must be noted, however; that 
alternative urban growth scenarios would likely yield different transportation demand and needs. 

Analysis of model results revealed a substantial demand for sub-regional trips in the potential 
new corridors rather than regional trips which are defined as longer than 8 miles in length.  
During the study process, the importance of completing a grid system to enable route choice, 



2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study – Retrospective Review 
March 17, 2015 
Page 3 

 
 

particularly in the area of the I-5 corridor north of the I-205 junction, was recognized. It should 
be noted that no transit expansion was assumed beyond that contained in the region’s 20-year 
transportation plans and there was no optimization of existing corridors for efficiencies.   

Following the initial focus on internal Clark County transportation corridors, the possible new 
north-south corridors identified were assessed regarding their potential for extension to cross the 
Columbia River.  For the westside corridor there are land use implications with environmentally 
sensitive lands, a wildlife refuge, and impacts to downtown Vancouver, Port of Vancouver and 
Port of Portland activities.  On the Washington side, the corridor exhibits characteristics of both 
a regional and sub-regional corridor though river crossing trips are predominantly regional in 
nature.  Cross-river travel would increase by about 3 to 4% due to latent demand for trips.  A 
potential new westside bi-state bridge may provide minor relief to the I-5 Bridge. Additionally, 
some I-205 bridge trips would also backfill onto the I-5 Bridge, providing minimal relief to I-205 
Bridge.   

A potential new eastside transportation corridor would be challenging because of existing land 
uses in the 192nd corridor and in the Camas downtown, because of crossing of watersheds such 
as the Lacamas watershed and because of highly parcelized lands that would have implications 
for right of way acquisition for a new corridor. On the Washington side, the corridor exhibits 
characteristics of carrying primarily sub-regional trips with river crossing trips also 
predominantly sub-regional.  Cross-river travel would increase by about 7 to 10% due to latent 
demand for trip making. An eastside bridge would likely provide no impact to the number of 
trips on I-5 Bridge and some relief to I-205 Bridge.    

WHAT WERE THE RECOMMENDED NEXT STEPS? 
In April 2008, the RTC Board endorsed the findings of the “50,000-foot level” Study.  The 
Board recognized that before any of the candidate corridors could be advanced into the 
Comprehensive Plans for the County and its jurisdictions and into a fiscally-constrained 
Regional Transportation Plan, more work would need to be done, particularly – the refinement of 
land use assumptions, the detailed study of candidate corridors, and consideration of the impacts 
of the candidate corridors on land use.  In addition, it was recognized the next steps in a multi-
step process would have to include outreach and participation of the public in articulating a 
future vision for Clark County.  

HAVE ANY OF THE NEXT STEPS BEEN ADVANCED? 
Following publication of the Study report (April 2008), some future steps were taken to pursue 
future visioning for Clark County with integration of land use and transportation concepts.  In 
April 2011, the Federal Highway Administration and Volpe Institute conducted a Transportation 
and Land Use Scenario Planning workshop in Vancouver, hosted by RTC.  In October 2011, a 
values assessment was proposed similar to the Envision Utah process successfully conducted in 
Utah and the Salt Lake City region.  However, lack of funds, staffing, a champion to pursue the 
values and visioning process together with the recessionary economy combined to halt further 
progress.   



2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study – Retrospective Review 
March 17, 2015 
Page 4 

 
 

Discussion among land use and transportation planners at the February Regional Transportation 
Advisory Committee meeting, affirmed that local jurisdictions have not individually taken steps 
to incorporate findings of the Study into local plans.  RTAC participants pointed out that growth 
has not been as rapid in this region as the growth forecast provided by OFM back in the early 
2000s.  RTAC members acknowledged that recent efforts in transportation planning and project 
development have focused on concerns for funding to preserve and maintain existing 
transportation systems into the future and to optimize existing corridors with focus on 
operational efficiencies.   

Attachment: Provided through RTC website link:  Transportation Corridor Visioning Study Report 
www.rtc.wa.gov/studies/vision  

20150303RTCB_CorridorVisioning.docx 

http://www.rtc.wa.gov/studies/vision/
http://www.rtc.wa.gov/studies/vision


Bi-State Coordination Committee  
Agenda Item 4 

 
2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor 
Visioning Study – Retrospective Review 

March 19, 2015 



Background  

March 19, 2015 

 Initiated in 2006 

 

 Battle Ground Mayor 
requested  north/south 
corridor to Camas 

 

 The RTCB noted that projects 
like the Padden take more 
than a couple of decades to 
develop and construct 

Source: Mayor Idsinga 



Background 

March 19, 2015 

 

 First phase of a multi-phase effort to establish a 50-
year transportation vision for the county that would 
provide an initial “50,000-foot level” planning 
analysis 

"How would we get around within our 
own community in the longer-term future 

if our County reaches one million in 
population?“ 

 



Planning Context 

March 19, 2015 

• Comprehensive Plans 

• 20-year Capital Facilities Plans (CFP) 

• 20-year Transit Development Plan 

• State Highway System Plan 

• 20-year Regional Transportation Plan 

• 10-year Priorities 

• 6-year CFPs 

• TIPs 

• Community Framework Plan 

4 6 10 20 50+ 

Timeframe 

? 
Transportation 

Corridor Visioning 
Study 



Key Assumptions – Land Use 

March 19, 2015 

Population Jobs 

Clark County 1,000,000 500,000 

Metro Oregon 3,000,000 2,000,000 

Total 4,000,000 2,500,000 



March 19, 2015 RTC Board Meeting 

legend 

Residential 

Commecia l 

Industrial ! Mining 

Agriculture ! Forest ! Park ! Open Space 

D Urban Growth Areas 



February 5, 2013 

1 Dot = 20 Households 

         Base Year (2004) 

                   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 5, 2013 

1 Dot = 20 Households 

         Base Year (2004) 

         GMA Future (2024) 

          

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 5, 2013 

1 Dot = 20 Households 

         Base Year (2004) 

         GMA Future (2024) 

         Visioning Study 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Key Assumptions – Transportation 

March 19, 2015 

 RTC and Metro’s 2030 RTP networks 

 

 New 10-12 lane I-5 bridge 

 

 Urban upgrades to major rural routes 
 179th St., 199th St, NE 72nd Ave. and etc. 

 

 Transit at 2030 levels 



March 19, 2015 

Mot.: 
fait CMdiUIf (orridon ",OWII W 
if' M:trd/W mnfdor optIoti fof 
po*tIItW ... CDl'Iidoft tM _ 

,.opost'd hi fItwt it" 

TlINcMd.s.t'CDI'lidoH 
lront.....,c ..... tiII ...... 



Key Findings 

March 19, 2015 

 Report is exploratory and informational 
 

 Land use assumptions require further policy decisions  
 

 Participation in the study is not policy commitment to 
the land use or transportation corridor vision identified 

 

 Preservation of any new corridors would require 
inclusion in local Comprehensive Plan as well as the 
RTP 

 



Key Findings – Westside Corridor 

March 19, 2015 

 Land use implications on each side of river as options 
traverse environmentally sensitive and/or existing 
urban areas 

 

 Washington side: exhibits characteristics of both a 
regional and sub-regional corridor 

 

 River crossing trips: predominantly regional  

 

 Minor relief to I-5, I-205 trips backfill onto I-5 Bridge 
with minimal relief 
to I-205 

 

 Increases cross-river travel about 3-4% (latent 
demand) 



Key Findings – Eastside Corridor 

March 19, 2015 

 Land use implications on each side of river as options 
traverse environmentally sensitive and/or existing 
urban areas 

 

 Washington side: exhibits characteristics of a sub-
regional corridor 

 

 River crossing trips: predominantly sub-regional 

 

 No impact to I-5; some relief to I-205 

 

 Increases cross-river travel about 7-10% (latent 
demand) 



Study Recommended Next Steps 

March 19, 2015 

 Further refinement of region’s long-term land use 
vision 

 

 Advanced study of candidate corridors 

 

 Review of impacts of the candidate corridors on 
land uses 

 

 In-depth public outreach and participation 



Steps Taken 

March 19, 2015 

 FHWA Transportation and 
Land Use Scenario Planning 
Workshop – April 2011 

 

 Linking Values to Regional 
Prosperity: A Proposal for a 
Core Values Assessment 
Process – October 2011 



Summary 

March 19, 2015 

 Study was “exploratory and informational” 

 

 Future land use visions and plans are key to 
defining future transportation infrastructure 
needs 

 

 Regional scenario planning/visioning could be 
used to develop a 50+ year vision that would 
inform comprehensive planning activities  



Bridge Volumes 

Year I-5 I-205 Both Growth

2000 126,903     132,159        259,062      

2001 125,652     138,664        264,316      2.0%

2002 128,162     141,860        270,022      2.1%

2003 129,511     143,620        273,131      1.1%

2004 130,279     143,358        273,637      0.2%

2005 132,603     145,927        278,530      1.8%

2006 131,916     146,127        278,043      -0.2%

2007 130,389     146,606        276,995      -0.4%

2008 126,278     141,661        267,939      -3.4%

2009 125,436     143,742        269,178      0.5%

2010 126,691     145,457        272,148      1.1%

2011 128,115     145,054        273,169      0.4%

2012 128,373     145,440        273,813      0.2%

2013 130,415     147,823        278,238      1.6%

2014 132,592     151,735        284,327      2.1%


	Agenda
	Dec. 9 Meeting Minutes
	Memo: I-205 Access and Operations Study Recomendations
	PPT: I-205 Access and Operations Study Recommendations
	Memo: 2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study 
	PPT: 2008 Clark County Transportation Corridor Visioning Study
	Handout: Bridge Traffic Volumes, 2000-2014

